
 
PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS WILL NOT BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, the regular 
meeting of the City Council for February 2, 2021 will be conducted telephonically through Zoom. Please be advised 
that pursuant to the Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact 
that could spread the COVID-19 virus, the Council Chambers will not be open for the meeting. Council Members will 
be participating telephonically and will not be physically present in the Council Chambers. 
 
If you would like to speak on an agenda item, you can access the Zoom meeting remotely: 
Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device: 

Please click this URL to join. https://zoom.us/j/97368201787?pwd=a2NvVnN6MEFjQ2Exc2pTZkpIdU1sQT09 

Passcode: 477973 

Or join by phone: 

Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

US: +1 669 900 9128 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 646 558 8656 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 
6799  

Webinar ID: 973 6820 1787 
Passcode: 477973 
International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/abNyiaqY1I 
 
 

 
The City wants you to know that you can also submit your comments by email to virtualhost@cityoflakeport.com.  
To give the City Clerk adequate time to print out your comments for consideration at the meeting, please submit your 
written comments prior to 3:30 p.m. on Tuesday, February 2, 2021. 
 
Please indicate in the email Subject Line "FOR PUBLIC COMMENT" and list the item number you wish to comment on. 
Comments that you want read to the Council will be subject to the three minute time limitation (approximately 350 
words). Written comments that are only to be provided to Council and not read at the meeting will be distributed to 
the Council prior to the meeting. 
 
The City of Lakeport thanks you in advance for taking all precautions to prevent spreading the COVID-19 virus. 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 AGENDA 
 REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKEPORT CITY COUNCIL 
 (ALSO MEETS AS THE CITY OF LAKEPORT MUNICIPAL SEWER DISTRICT, THE LAKEPORT INDUSTRIAL 
 DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, THE MUNICIPAL FINANCING AGENCY OF LAKEPORT and THE SUCCESSOR 
 AGENCY TO THE FORMER LAKEPORT REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 
 Tuesday, February 2, 2021 6:00 p.m.  
  Location:  See Teleconferencing Instructions Below 

https://zoom.us/j/97368201787?pwd=a2NvVnN6MEFjQ2Exc2pTZkpIdU1sQT09
https://zoom.us/u/abNyiaqY1I
mailto:virtualhost@cityoflakeport.com


City Council Agenda of February 2, 2021  Page 2 

 
 

 AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKEPORT CITY COUNCIL 
(ALSO MEETS AS THE CITY OF LAKEPORT MUNICIPAL SEWER DISTRICT, THE 
LAKEPORT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, THE MUNICIPAL FINANCING 
AGENCY OF LAKEPORT and THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER LAKEPORT 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 
Tuesday, February 2, 2021 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL: 6:00 p.m. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA/ URGENCY 
ITEMS: 

Move to accept agenda as posted, or move to add or delete items. 

To add item, Council is required to make a majority decision that an urgency exists (as 
defined in the Brown Act) and a 2/3rds determination that the need to take action 
arose subsequent to the Agenda being posted. 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: The following Consent Agenda items are expected to be routine and noncontroversial.  They will be acted upon by the 
Council at one time without any discussion.  Any Council Member may request that any item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for discussion under the regular Agenda.  Removed items will be considered following the Consent Calendar 
portion of this agenda. 

 A. Ordinances: Waive reading except by title, of any ordinances under consideration at this meeting 
for either introduction or passage per Government Code Section 36934. 

 B. Minutes: Approve minutes of the City Council regular meeting of January 19, 2021. 

 C. Warrants: Approve the warrant register of January 20, 2021. 

 D. Measure Z Advisory Committee 
(MZAC): 

Receive and file the draft minutes of the January 20, 2021 Measure Z Advisory 
Committee (MZAC). 

V. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS/REQUESTS:  

 A. Public Input: Any person may speak for 3 minutes about any subject within the authority of the City Council, provided that the subject is 
not already on tonight’s agenda. Per Government Code §54954.3(a), the City Council cannot take action or express a 
consensus of approval or disapproval on any public comments regarding matters which do not appear on the printed 
agenda 

 B. Presentation: Receive an informational presentation from the Blue Ribbon Committee for the 
Rehabilitation of Clear Lake. 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING:  

 A. Community Development Block 
Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security Act (CDBG-CV): 

Hold a public hearing and  

1. Approve up to two new funding allocations; and  
2. Direct staff to proceed with the preparation of a CDBG-CV rounds 2 and 3 

program application for the recommended purpose. 

VI. COUNCIL BUSINESS: 

    

VII. CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS: 

 A. Miscellaneous Reports, if any:  

VIII. ADJOURNMENT:   

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office at 225 
Park Street, Lakeport, California, during normal business hours.  Such documents are also available on the City of Lakeport’s website, www.cityoflakeport.com, subject to 
staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting. 

http://www.cityoflakeport.com/


City Council Agenda of February 2, 2021  Page 3 

 
 

The City of Lakeport, in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), requests individuals who require special accommodations to access, attend and/or 
participate in the City meeting due to disability, to please contact the City Clerk’s Office, (707) 263-5615, 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting to ensure reasonable 
accommodations are provided. 

 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Hilary Britton, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes of January 19, 2021  Page 2 

 
 

 MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKEPORT CITY COUNCIL 
(ALSO MEETS AS THE CITY OF LAKEPORT MUNICIPAL SEWER DISTRICT, THE 
LAKEPORT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, THE MUNICIPAL FINANCING 
AGENCY OF LAKEPORT and THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER LAKEPORT 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 
Tuesday, January 19, 2021 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL: Mayor Pro Tem Mattina called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m., with Council 
Members Froio, Green, Turner, and Mayor Pro Tem Mattina present. Mayor Parlet 
was absent. 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The Pledge of Allegiance was observed by video. 

III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA/ URGENCY 
ITEMS: 

A motion was made by Council Member Froio, seconded by Council Member Turner 
and passed 4-0-0-1 by the following roll call vote: Froio – aye; Green – aye; Mattina – 
aye; Turner – aye; Parlet – absent to accept the agenda as posted.   

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: The following Consent Agenda items are expected to be routine and noncontroversial.  They will be acted upon by the 
Council at one time without any discussion.  Any Council Member may request that any item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for discussion under the regular Agenda.  Removed items will be considered following the Consent Calendar 
portion of this agenda. 

 A. Ordinances: Waive reading except by title, of any ordinances under consideration at this meeting 
for either introduction or passage per Government Code Section 36934. 

 B. Minutes: Approve minutes of the City Council regular meeting of January 5, 2021. 

  Vote on the Consent Agenda: A motion was made by Council Member Turner, seconded by Council Member Green, 
and passed 4-0-0-1 by the following roll call vote: Froio – aye; Green – aye; Mattina – 
aye; Turner – aye; Parlet – absent, to accept the Consent Agenda, items A-B. 

V. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS/REQUESTS:  

 A. Public Input: There was no input offered from the public.   

 B. Presentation: Dr. Gary Pace. MD, MPH, of the Lake County Health Department presented an update 
on Covid-19 in Lake County, particularly the availability of hospital beds and vaccine 
status.   

 B. New Employee Introduction: Chief Rasmussen introduced new employee Kaitlyn Morfin, Police Officer Trainee. 

VI. COUNCIL BUSINESS: 

 A. City Manager:  

  1. Department Goals Update: City Manager Ingram presented an update on the progress towards the fulfillment of 
FY 20/21 Departmental Goals for Council discussion. 

 B. Community Development Director  

  1. Contract Amendment: The staff report was presented by Community Development Director Byers. 

A motion was made by Council Member Green, seconded by Council Member Turner, 
and passed 4-0-0-1 by the following roll call vote: Froio – aye; Green – aye; Mattina – 
aye; Turner – aye; Parlet – absent, to approve and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the first amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Dude 
Solutions for SmartGov e-permitting. 



City Council Minutes of January 19, 2021  Page 3 

 
 

 C. Finance Director  

  1. Contract Award: The staff report was presented by Finance Director Walker. 

A motion was made by Council Member Froio, seconded by Council Member Green, 
and passed 4-0-0-1 by the following roll call vote: Froio – aye; Green – aye; Mattina – 
aye; Turner – aye; Parlet – absent, to authorize the City Manager to execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with BCA Architects for the completion of phase 1 of 
a recreation feasibility study contingent upon obtaining a cost-sharing agreement 
with Lake County and the City of Clearlake for equal shares of this study. 

VII. CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS: 

 A. Miscellaneous Reports, if any: Council Member Froio gave no report.  

Council Member Mattina gave no report. 

Mayor Parlet was absent. 

Council Member Turner gave no report.  

Council Member Green acknowledged the opening of 350 North, the city’s newest 
restaurant.  

Administrative Services Director Buendia gave no report. 

City Attorney Ruderman stated that he attended a League Policy committee meeting.    

City Manager Ingram relayed that Public Works staff has been cleaning up after heavy 
winds which left behind a lot of debris throughout town and Library Park. 

Community Development Director Byers announced that a CDBG community meeting 
takes place on Thursday.    

Finance Director Walker attended the League’s Revenue and Taxation Committee. 

Police Chief Rasmussen gave no report.  

Public Works Director Grider was absent. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Pro Tem Mattina adjourned the meeting at 7:27 p.m. 

 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Stacey Mattina, Mayor Pro Tem 

Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kelly Buendia, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

225 PARK STREET • LAKEPORT, CALIFORNIA 95453 • TELEPHONE (707) 263-5615 • FAX (707) 263-8584 

 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
Over 125 years of community 
pride, progress and service 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1/21/2021 
 
 
I hereby certify that the attached list of warrants has been audited, 
extensions are proper, purchase orders have been issued, and department 
heads have been given the opportunity to review and sign claim forms. 
 
 

  
 ______________________________ 
 Nicholas Walker 
 Finance Director 
 
 



1/21/2021 11:18:58 AM Page 1 of 7

Bank Transaction Report
Lakeport Transaction Detail

Issued Date Range: 12/10/2020 - 01/20/2021

Cleared Date Range:  -

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

Bank Account: 15-0352000798 - POOLED CASH BANK

-76,917.97OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT DISPOSAL, INC.58490 Check12/15/2020

-2,845.00OutstandingAccounts PayableADAMS ASHBY GROUP, LLC.58498 Check12/17/2020

-726.00OutstandingAccounts PayableALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES58499 Check12/17/2020

-1,657.63OutstandingAccounts PayableAPEX TECHNOLOGY MGMT, INC.58500 Check12/17/2020

-22.90OutstandingAccounts PayableARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES58501 Check12/17/2020

-549.37OutstandingAccounts PayableAT&T CALNET358502 Check12/17/2020

-62.12OutstandingAccounts PayableCHLORINATORS INCORPORATED58503 Check12/17/2020

-1,420.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCLEAR LAKE ENVIRONMENTAL RESEARCH CENTER58504 Check12/17/2020

-274.56OutstandingAccounts PayableCLEARLAKE LAVA, INC.58505 Check12/17/2020

-2,386.83OutstandingAccounts PayableCLEARLAKE REDI-MIX INC.58506 Check12/17/2020

-2,456.75OutstandingAccounts PayableCOUNTY OF LAKE58507 Check12/17/2020

-200.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCRITICAL REACH, INC.58508 Check12/17/2020

-247.85OutstandingAccounts PayableDEEP VALLEY SECURITY58509 Check12/17/2020

-66.00OutstandingAccounts PayableDEPT OF JUSTICE58510 Check12/17/2020

-477.53OutstandingAccounts PayableFERRELLGAS58511 Check12/17/2020

-33.71OutstandingAccounts PayableG & G PRINTING SERVICES58512 Check12/17/2020

-282.53OutstandingAccounts PayableGRAINGER58513 Check12/17/2020

-184.73OutstandingAccounts PayableHACH CHEMICAL COMPANY58514 Check12/17/2020

-255.00OutstandingAccounts PayableHIGH COUNTRY SECURITY58515 Check12/17/2020

-189.00OutstandingAccounts PayableJONAS ENERGY SOLUTIONS58516 Check12/17/2020

-27.85OutstandingAccounts PayableKELSEYVILLE LUMBER58517 Check12/17/2020

-694.64OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE CO VECTOR CONTROL DIST.58518 Check12/17/2020

-4,004.72OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE COUNTY ELECTRIC SUPPLY58519 Check12/17/2020

-82.65OutstandingAccounts PayableLEE'S SPORTING GOODS58520 Check12/17/2020

-30.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLEXIS NEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS58521 Check12/17/2020

-1,109.55OutstandingAccounts PayableMC MASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO.58522 Check12/17/2020

-562.28OutstandingAccounts PayableMENDO MILL & LUMBER CO.58523 Check12/17/2020

-54,900.00OutstandingAccounts PayableMIKSIS SERVICES, INC.58524 Check12/17/2020

-178.00OutstandingAccounts PayableOCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF CALIF58525 Check12/17/2020

-387.69OutstandingAccounts PayableO'REILLY AUTO PARTS58526 Check12/17/2020

-944.77OutstandingAccounts PayablePACE SUPPLY #03391-0058527 Check12/17/2020

-166.01OutstandingAccounts PayablePITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SVCS58528 Check12/17/2020

-366.92OutstandingAccounts PayableR.S. HUGHES58529 Check12/17/2020

-266.66OutstandingAccounts PayableRICOH - WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SVCS, LLC58530 Check12/17/2020

-228.92OutstandingAccounts PayableRICOH USA, INC.58531 Check12/17/2020

-55.46OutstandingAccounts PayableSAFETY-KLEEN CORPORATION58532 Check12/17/2020



Issued Date Range: -Bank Transaction Report

1/21/2021 11:18:58 AM Page 2 of 7

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

-1,175.76OutstandingAccounts PayableSHRED-IT USA LLC58533 Check12/17/2020

-32.11OutstandingAccounts PayableTARI ROGERS58534 Check12/17/2020

-132.70OutstandingAccounts PayableTRI-CITIES ANSWERING SERVICE58535 Check12/17/2020

-146.00OutstandingAccounts PayableUSA BLUE BOOK58536 Check12/17/2020

-557.49OutstandingAccounts PayableVERIZON WIRELESS58537 Check12/17/2020

-982.12OutstandingAccounts PayableWESTGATE PETROLEUM CO., INC.58538 Check12/17/2020

-663.00OutstandingAccounts PayableAFLAC58491 Check12/18/2020

-157.38OutstandingAccounts PayableCA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT58492 Check12/18/2020

-100.00OutstandingAccounts PayableFRANCHISE TAX BOARD58493 Check12/18/2020

-360.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT EMPLOYEE'S ASSOC58494 Check12/18/2020

-490.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLPOA58495 Check12/18/2020

-875.00OutstandingAccounts PayableNATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION58496 Check12/18/2020

-2,442.04OutstandingAccounts PayableVALIC - C/O JP MORGAN CHASE58497 Check12/18/2020

-2,845.27OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002010 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-2,854.91OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002011 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-2,694.33OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002012 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-3,086.29OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002013 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-3,566.75OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002014 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-5,511.10OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002015 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-833.69OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002016 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-2,014.37OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002017 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-43.71OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002018 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-7.64OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002019 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-3,522.76OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0002020 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-4,159.90OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0002021 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-1,052.92OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0002022 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-12,287.88OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0002023 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-163.68OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0002024 Bank Draft12/18/2020

-5,977.74OutstandingAccounts Payable4LEAF, INC.58546 Check12/29/2020

-57.00OutstandingAccounts PayableALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES58547 Check12/29/2020

-20,707.20OutstandingAccounts PayableAmWINS GROUP BENEFITS, INC.58548 Check12/29/2020

-113.90OutstandingAccounts PayableAPEX TECHNOLOGY MGMT, INC.58549 Check12/29/2020

-152.59OutstandingAccounts PayableAT&T58550 Check12/29/2020

-28,992.01OutstandingAccounts PayableBRIDGES CONTRUCTION58551 Check12/29/2020

-7,371.75OutstandingAccounts PayableCOLANTUONO, HIGHSMITH & WHATLEY, PC58552 Check12/29/2020

-1,500.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES58553 Check12/29/2020

-42.56OutstandingAccounts PayableDAWN MILLER58554 Check12/29/2020

-1,046.48OutstandingAccounts PayableDOUG  GRIDER58555 Check12/29/2020

-250.00OutstandingAccounts PayableEASTSHORE CONSULTING58556 Check12/29/2020

-4.30OutstandingAccounts PayableFED EX58557 Check12/29/2020

-5.25OutstandingAccounts PayableFERGUSON WATERWORKS #142358558 Check12/29/2020

-250.00OutstandingAccounts PayableGLADWELL GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES58559 Check12/29/2020

-592.08OutstandingAccounts PayableHARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS58560 Check12/29/2020



Issued Date Range: -Bank Transaction Report

1/21/2021 11:18:58 AM Page 3 of 7

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

-1,166.50OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE COUNTY RECORD BEE58561 Check12/29/2020

-450.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT MAIN STREET ASSN.58562 Check12/29/2020

-306.00OutstandingAccounts PayableMICHAEL  SOBIERAJ58563 Check12/29/2020

-326.70OutstandingAccounts PayableMYERS STEVENS & TOOHEY & CO.58564 Check12/29/2020

-1,325.00OutstandingAccounts PayableNOR BAY CONSULTING58565 Check12/29/2020

-11,635.00OutstandingAccounts PayableOE PUBLIC & MISC EE'S58566 Check12/29/2020

-171.00OutstandingAccounts PayablePACE ENGINEERING, INC.58567 Check12/29/2020

-1,086.28OutstandingAccounts PayablePACE SUPPLY #03391-0058568 Check12/29/2020

-195.75OutstandingAccounts PayablePITNEY BOWES - SUPPLIES58569 Check12/29/2020

-6,240.00OutstandingAccounts PayablePOLESTAR COMPUTERS58570 Check12/29/2020

-235.93OutstandingAccounts PayableRAINBOW AGRICULTURAL SERVICES58571 Check12/29/2020

-807.14OutstandingAccounts PayableRICOH - WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SVCS, LLC58572 Check12/29/2020

-17,486.65OutstandingAccounts PayableSSA LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS, INC.58573 Check12/29/2020

-1,031.07OutstandingAccounts PayableSTAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT-BUSINESS ADVANTAGE58574 Check12/29/2020

-75,079.81OutstandingAccounts PayableTEAM GHILOTTI, INC58575 Check12/29/2020

-6,321.03OutstandingAccounts PayableTHE WORKS INC/MLS - LSQ FUNDING GROUP58576 Check12/29/2020

-1,000.00OutstandingAccounts PayableTRIPEPI SMITH & ASSOCIATES, INC.58577 Check12/29/2020

-1,996.00OutstandingAccounts PayableUNION BANK58578 Check12/29/2020

-303.78OutstandingAccounts PayableUSA BLUE BOOK58579 Check12/29/2020

-38.01OutstandingAccounts PayableVERIZON WIRELESS58580 Check12/29/2020

-423.50OutstandingAccounts PayableWEST ALLIS BLUE58581 Check12/29/2020

-1,065.99OutstandingAccounts PayableWESTGATE PETROLEUM CO., INC.58582 Check12/29/2020

-663.00OutstandingAccounts PayableAFLAC58539 Check12/30/2020

-157.38OutstandingAccounts PayableCA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT58540 Check12/30/2020

-100.00OutstandingAccounts PayableFRANCHISE TAX BOARD58541 Check12/30/2020

-360.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT EMPLOYEE'S ASSOC58542 Check12/30/2020

-490.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLPOA58543 Check12/30/2020

-875.00OutstandingAccounts PayableNATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION58544 Check12/30/2020

-2,442.04OutstandingAccounts PayableVALIC - C/O JP MORGAN CHASE58545 Check12/30/2020

-3,402.12OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002026 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-3,413.64OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002027 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-2,578.77OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002028 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-2,953.92OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002029 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-3,737.45OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002030 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-5,774.83OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002031 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-833.69OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002032 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-2,014.37OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002033 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-44.64OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002034 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-7.64OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002035 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-3,482.26OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0002036 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-3,833.78OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0002037 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-1,092.64OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0002038 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-10,937.59OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0002039 Bank Draft12/30/2020



Issued Date Range: -Bank Transaction Report

1/21/2021 11:18:58 AM Page 4 of 7

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

-128.96OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0002040 Bank Draft12/30/2020

-502.00OutstandingAccounts PayableALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES58588 Check01/07/2021

-1,047.08OutstandingAccounts PayableALTERITY GROUP58589 Check01/07/2021

-15.00OutstandingAccounts PayableANDREW  BRITTON58590 Check01/07/2021

-68.70OutstandingAccounts PayableARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES58591 Check01/07/2021

-288.90OutstandingAccounts PayableAT&T58592 Check01/07/2021

-122.54OutstandingAccounts PayableENTERPRISE -  EAN SERVICES, LLC58593 Check01/07/2021

-342.05OutstandingAccounts PayableEUREKA OXYGEN COMPANY58594 Check01/07/2021

-854.25OutstandingAccounts PayableFERRELLGAS58595 Check01/07/2021

-80.00OutstandingAccounts PayableFRANK  HAAS58596 Check01/07/2021

-232.58OutstandingAccounts PayableHACH CHEMICAL COMPANY58597 Check01/07/2021

-284.00OutstandingAccounts PayableJONAS ENERGY SOLUTIONS58598 Check01/07/2021

-390.98OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE COUNTY ELECTRIC SUPPLY58599 Check01/07/2021

-2,363.64OutstandingAccounts PayableLOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION INC.58600 Check01/07/2021

-653.25OutstandingAccounts PayableMC MASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO.58601 Check01/07/2021

-1,410.25OutstandingAccounts PayableMEDIACOM58602 Check01/07/2021

-500.00OutstandingAccounts PayableMIKSIS SERVICES, INC.58603 Check01/07/2021

-168.75OutstandingAccounts PayableNORTH COAST COMMUNITY PLANNING58604 Check01/07/2021

-49.59OutstandingAccounts PayableNORTHERN CALIFORNIA GLOVE58605 Check01/07/2021

-11,635.00OutstandingAccounts PayableOE PUBLIC & MISC EE'S58606 Check01/07/2021

-1,737.29OutstandingAccounts PayablePACE SUPPLY #03391-0058607 Check01/07/2021

-1,387.65OutstandingAccounts PayablePAPE MATERIAL HANDLING58608 Check01/07/2021

-5,117.35OutstandingAccounts PayablePAUL R. CURREN58609 Check01/07/2021

-18,976.25OutstandingAccounts PayablePG&E58610 Check01/07/2021

-494.89OutstandingAccounts PayableRAINBOW AGRICULTURAL SERVICES58611 Check01/07/2021

-2,486.59OutstandingAccounts PayableREDWOOD COAST FUELS58612 Check01/07/2021

-147.68OutstandingAccounts PayableREMIF58613 Check01/07/2021

-66,360.80OutstandingAccounts PayableREMIF58614 Check01/07/2021

-63,838.25OutstandingAccounts PayableREMIF58615 Check01/07/2021

-188.68OutstandingAccounts PayableRICOH - WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SVCS, LLC58616 Check01/07/2021

-95.00OutstandingAccounts PayableROTARY CLUB OF LAKEPORT58617 Check01/07/2021

-437.50OutstandingAccounts PayableSHN CONSULTING ENGINEERS & GEO58618 Check01/07/2021

-563.66OutstandingAccounts PayableSTANDARD PRINTING COMPANY58619 Check01/07/2021

-4,578.37OutstandingAccounts PayableSUNRISE ENVIRON. SCIENTIFIC58620 Check01/07/2021

-4,800.40OutstandingAccounts PayableSWRCB ACCOUNTING OFFICE58621 Check01/07/2021

-3,596.16OutstandingAccounts PayableTHATCHER COMPANY OF CA., INC.58622 Check01/07/2021

-1,459.65OutstandingAccounts PayableTHE WORKS INC/MLS - LSQ FUNDING GROUP58623 Check01/07/2021

-50.00OutstandingAccounts PayableUCC RENTALS58624 Check01/07/2021

-2,555.31OutstandingAccounts PayableUKIAH PAPER SUPPLY, INC.58625 Check01/07/2021

-933.51OutstandingAccounts PayableUS POSTMASTER - ARIZONA58626 Check01/07/2021

-2,099.57OutstandingAccounts PayableWILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES58627 Check01/07/2021

-5,520.00OutstandingAccounts Payable4LEAF, INC.58636 Check01/14/2021

-1,657.63OutstandingAccounts PayableAPEX TECHNOLOGY MGMT, INC.58637 Check01/14/2021



Issued Date Range: -Bank Transaction Report

1/21/2021 11:18:58 AM Page 5 of 7

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

-13.05OutstandingAccounts PayableAQUA PRODUCTS58638 Check01/14/2021

-22.90OutstandingAccounts PayableARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES58639 Check01/14/2021

-1,316.74OutstandingAccounts PayableAT&T CALNET358640 Check01/14/2021

-4,567.50OutstandingAccounts PayableBADGER METER58641 Check01/14/2021

-715.50OutstandingAccounts PayableCA BLDG STANDARDS COMMISSION58642 Check01/14/2021

-2,570.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCLEAR LAKE ENVIRONMENTAL RESEARCH CENTER58643 Check01/14/2021

-587.68OutstandingAccounts PayableCLEARLAKE REDI-MIX INC.58644 Check01/14/2021

-6,525.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCOLANTUONO, HIGHSMITH & WHATLEY, PC58645 Check01/14/2021

-562.50OutstandingAccounts PayableCOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES58646 Check01/14/2021

-237.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCOUNTY OF LAKE-ANIMAL CONTROL58647 Check01/14/2021

-675.00OutstandingAccounts PayableDEBRA  ENGLAND58648 Check01/14/2021

-247.85OutstandingAccounts PayableDEEP VALLEY SECURITY58649 Check01/14/2021

-609.56OutstandingAccounts PayableDEPT OF CONSERVATION58650 Check01/14/2021

-105.00OutstandingAccounts PayableDEPT OF JUSTICE58651 Check01/14/2021

-9,125.00OutstandingAccounts PayableE & M ELECTRIC INC.58652 Check01/14/2021

-14,376.00OutstandingAccounts PayableENGIE SERVICES U.S.. INC.58653 Check01/14/2021

-176.92OutstandingAccounts PayableEUREKA OXYGEN COMPANY58654 Check01/14/2021

-631.58OutstandingAccounts PayableFERRELLGAS58655 Check01/14/2021

-59.81OutstandingAccounts PayableG & G PRINTING SERVICES58656 Check01/14/2021

-454.65OutstandingAccounts PayableKELSEYVILLE LUMBER58657 Check01/14/2021

-1,104.00OutstandingAccounts PayableKELSEYVILLE TNT MINI STORAGE58658 Check01/14/2021

-754.08OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE COUNTY ELECTRIC SUPPLY58659 Check01/14/2021

-237.08OutstandingAccounts PayableLEE'S SPORTING GOODS58660 Check01/14/2021

-114.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLIGHTHOUSE BIS, LLC58661 Check01/14/2021

-376.90OutstandingAccounts PayableMEDIACOM58662 Check01/14/2021

-1,295.58OutstandingAccounts PayableMENDO MILL & LUMBER CO.58663 Check01/14/2021

-480.56OutstandingAccounts PayableNAPA AUTO - LAKE PARTS58664 Check01/14/2021

-259.94OutstandingAccounts PayableNUSO58665 Check01/14/2021

-18.30OutstandingAccounts PayableONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES58666 Check01/14/2021

-4.88OutstandingAccounts PayableO'REILLY AUTO PARTS58667 Check01/14/2021

-1,532.02OutstandingAccounts PayablePACE SUPPLY #03391-0058668 Check01/14/2021

-69.73OutstandingAccounts PayablePG&E58669 Check01/14/2021

-52.34OutstandingAccounts PayablePLAZA PAINT & SUPPLIES58670 Check01/14/2021

-247.50OutstandingAccounts PayablePRENTICE LONG, PC58671 Check01/14/2021

-2,937.50OutstandingAccounts PayablePREPAREDNESS CONSULTING & TRAINING58672 Check01/14/2021

-12,999.48OutstandingAccounts PayableR. KAPAHI DBA ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING SPECIALISTS58673 Check01/14/2021

-960.00OutstandingAccounts PayableRB PEST CONTROL58674 Check01/14/2021

-3,453.13OutstandingAccounts PayableREDWOOD COAST FUELS58675 Check01/14/2021

-710.00OutstandingAccounts PayableRYAN COOLEY58676 Check01/14/2021

-68.62OutstandingAccounts PayableSTAPLES COMMERCIAL MORE ACCOUNT58677 Check01/14/2021

-25.00OutstandingAccounts PayableSUTTER LAKESIDE HOSPITAL58678 Check01/14/2021

-344.78OutstandingAccounts PayableTELSTAR INSTRUMENTS58679 Check01/14/2021

-823.84OutstandingAccounts PayableTHE WORKS INC/MLS - LSQ FUNDING GROUP58680 Check01/14/2021



Issued Date Range: -Bank Transaction Report

1/21/2021 11:18:58 AM Page 6 of 7

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

-127.10OutstandingAccounts PayableTRI-CITIES ANSWERING SERVICE58681 Check01/14/2021

-5,097.35OutstandingAccounts PayableU.S. BANK58682 Check01/14/2021

-761.24OutstandingAccounts PayableUKIAH PAPER SUPPLY, INC.58683 Check01/14/2021

-161.90OutstandingAccounts PayableVERIZON CONNECT NWF, INC.58684 Check01/14/2021

-312.44OutstandingAccounts PayableVERIZON WIRELESS58685 Check01/14/2021

-1,707.53OutstandingAccounts PayableWESTGATE PETROLEUM CO., INC.58686 Check01/14/2021

-663.00OutstandingAccounts PayableAFLAC58628 Check01/15/2021

-157.38OutstandingAccounts PayableCA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT58629 Check01/15/2021

-100.00OutstandingAccounts PayableFRANCHISE TAX BOARD58630 Check01/15/2021

-375.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT EMPLOYEE'S ASSOC58631 Check01/15/2021

-193.40OutstandingAccounts PayableLEGALSHIELD58632 Check01/15/2021

-490.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLPOA58633 Check01/15/2021

-875.00OutstandingAccounts PayableNATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION58634 Check01/15/2021

-2,442.04OutstandingAccounts PayableVALIC - C/O JP MORGAN CHASE58635 Check01/15/2021

-78,902.68OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT DISPOSAL, INC.58687 Check01/15/2021

-3,549.05OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002042 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-3,561.06OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002043 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-2,602.53OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002044 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-2,981.13OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002045 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-3,743.92OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002046 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-5,784.81OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002047 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-833.69OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002048 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-2,014.37OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002049 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-44.64OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002050 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-7.64OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERSDFT0002051 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-3,672.34OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0002052 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-4,312.15OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0002053 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-1,507.61OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0002054 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-12,081.72OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0002055 Bank Draft01/15/2021

-223.20OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0002056 Bank Draft01/15/2021

Bank Account 15-0352000798 Total: (238) -874,923.29

Report Total: (238) -874,923.29



Issued Date Range: -Bank Transaction Report

1/21/2021 11:18:58 AM Page 7 of 7

Summary
Bank Account Count Amount

-874,923.2923815-0352000798 POOLED CASH BANK

-874,923.29Report Total: 238

Cash Account Count Amount

-874,923.29238998 998-0000-101000   POOLED CASH - WEST AMERICA

-874,923.29Report Total: 238

Transaction Type Count Amount

-135,801.3645Bank Draft

-739,121.93193Check

-874,923.29Report Total: 238



  

CITIZEN MEMBERS:  Meg Harper, Zach Jordan, Susan King, Dennis Rollins, and Verna Schaffer 
STAFF MEMBERS: Kevin Ingram; City Manager; Nick Walker, Finance Director; Kelly Buendia, City Clerk/Secretary 

MINUTES 
MEASURE Z ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING 
Via Teleconference 

January 20, 2021 
 

  
 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS WILL NOT BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, the regular 
meeting of the Measure Z Advisory Committee (MZAC) for January 20, 2021 will be conducted telephonically through 
Zoom. Please be advised that pursuant to the Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by 
limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, the Council Chambers will not be open for the meeting. 
Council Members will be participating telephonically and will not be physically present in the Council Chambers. 
 
If you would like to speak on an agenda item, you can access the Zoom meeting remotely: 
Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  
 

Please click the link to join:  https://zoom.us/j/93188201539?pwd=LzBla2JqaC9TSEpvVDd1azVpYmxvUT09 
 

Passcode: 282288 
 
Or join by phone:    
     

Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
US: +1 669 900 9128 or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 646 558 8656  or +1 301 715 8592  
or +1 312 626 6799  
 

Webinar ID: 931 8820 1539 
Passcode: 282288 
International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/a9Z9RMoL6 

 
The City wants you to know that you can also submit your comments by email to virtualhost@cityoflakeport.com.  
To give the City Clerk adequate time to print out your comments for consideration at the meeting, please submit your 
written comments prior to 3:30 p.m. on Wednesday Jan 20, 2021. 
 
Please indicate in the email Subject Line "FOR PUBLIC COMMENT" and list the item number you wish to comment on. 
Comments that you want read to the Committee will be subject to the three minute time limitation (approximately 350 
words). Written comments that are only to be provided to Committee and not read at the meeting will be distributed to 
the Committee prior to the meeting. 
 
The City of Lakeport thanks you in advance for taking all precautions to prevent spreading the COVID-19 virus. 
 
  

https://zoom.us/j/93188201539?pwd=LzBla2JqaC9TSEpvVDd1azVpYmxvUT09
https://zoom.us/u/a9Z9RMoL6
mailto:virtualhost@cityoflakeport.com


  

CITIZEN MEMBERS:  Meg Harper, Zach Jordan, Susan King, Dennis Rollins, and Verna Schaffer 
STAFF MEMBERS: Kevin Ingram; City Manager; Nick Walker, Finance Director; Kelly Buendia, City Clerk/Secretary 

MINUTES 
MEASURE Z ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING 
Via Teleconference 

January 20, 2021 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Vice Chair Rollins opened the meeting at 5:50 p.m. with Committee 
Members Harper, Jordan, King and Schaffer present. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
 

Committee member King made a motion; seconded by Committee member 
Schaffer to approve Minutes of the October 7, 2020 meeting.  
 
The motion was carried by the following roll call vote:  Committee member 
Harper – aye; Jordan – aye; King - aye; Rollins – aye; Schaffer – aye.  
 
 

3. CITIZEN INPUT 

 

There was no input offered from the public. 
 

4. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 

 

A. Election of Officers The Clerk received nominations for Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for 
the term ending 12/31/2021.   

Committee member Schaffer nominated Dennis Rollins for Chairperson, 
who was then elected by the following roll call vote:  Committee member 
Harper – aye; Jordan – aye; King - aye; Rollins – aye; Schaffer – aye.  
 
Committee member King nominated Verna Schaffer for Vice Chairperson 
who was then elected by the following roll call vote:  Committee member 
Harper – aye; Jordan – aye; King - aye; Rollins – aye; Schaffer – aye.  
 

B. Calendar of Meetings The Clerk will present the 2021 calendar of meetings.  The Committee 
received and filed the meeting calendar for 2021 with the following 
meetings established:  January 20; April 21; July 21; and October 20, 2021. 

C. Brown Act Overview City Clerk Buendia presented an overview on the Ralph M. Brown Act as it 
relates to the Measure Z Advisory Committee. 

D. Commissioner Budget 
Orientation 

Finance Director Walker presented an overview and introduction to the city 
budget and Measure Z revenues. 

 
5. ADJOURN 
 

Chair Rollins adjourned the meeting at 6:49 p.m. with the next meeting is 
scheduled for Wednesday, April 21, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. 

  
 
 
 
 _________________________ 
 Kelly Buendia, City Clerk 
  



Meeting Date:  02/02/2021 Page 1  Agenda Item #V.A. 
 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
City Council  

City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District  
Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency  

Lakeport Industrial Development Agency   
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport   

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   CDBG CV 2 & 3 MEETING DATE:   02/02/2021 

SUBMITTED BY:   Jennifer M. Byers, Community Development Director 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

  

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL/BOARD: 

1. The City Council is being requested to receive public comment regarding the State Community 
Development Block Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CDBG-CV) Rounds 2 and 
3 program and possible activities and projects to be considered for funding under the Notice of 
Funding Availability (NOFA) process; 

2. Direct staff to prepare for Council consideration a CDBG-CV application requesting up to $241,394 for 
the activities determined after the Public Comment, staff’s recommendations and discussion. 

BACKGROUND:  On March 27, 2020, Congress passed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
(CARES) Act in response to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. The State Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) is expected to publish a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for 
Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CDBG-CV) funds. 
Eligible cities and counties may submit applications for CDBG-CV funds under the NOFA. On December 18, 
2020, a NOFA was released for Rounds 2 and 3 of the CARES Funding (CDBG CV 2 and 3) with varying 
timelines based on the activity selected. In addition, eligible activities must be used directly to prevent, 
prepare for, or respond to COVID-19 and meet CDBG requirements as provided and directed by HCD.   

The City of Lakeport anticipates submitting an application under this NOFA. This CDBG-CV application will 
be in addition to the City’s regular 2021 CDBG NOFA to be submitted in May. 

DISCUSSION:  The purpose of this public hearing is to solicit ideas from the general public and provide 
direction to City staff on potential programs to include in the City’s CDBG-CV application.  The NOFA was 
released on December 18, 2020 with varying timelines based on the activity selected.   

Potential permitted activities include: 
1. Public Services to respond to COVID-19 impacts: 

a) Including short-term subsistence payments for households at risk of eviction and/or  



Meeting Date:  02/02/2021 Page 2  Agenda Item #V.A. 
 

b) Homelessness and housing costs for those exiting homelessness, homeless shelter 
operations, and health and education support services 

2. Public Facility and Infrastructure improvements with a documented COVID-19 nexus 
3. Public facility acquisition - Including healthcare facilities, emergency shelters, and housing for 

persons experiencing homelessness in response to COVID-19 impacts. 
4. Housing Assistance - Acquisition and/or rehabilitation of Low-Mod Income Housing in response 

to COVID-19 impacts on vulnerable populations or individuals including households experiencing 
homelessness 

5. Business assistance to help businesses retain employees, or in the case of businesses re-starting 
after mandated COVID-19 related shut-downs, adding employees 

6. Microenterprise assistance (including Micro-financial assistance and Technical assistance) for 
businesses impacted by COVID-19 with five or fewer employees, including the business owner 

On January 21, 2021, a community meeting was held via zoom, as well as a survey released to a variety of 
organizations, individuals and businesses requesting their input (link provided here: 
https://forms.gle/EqcbkWWkmShUyCry7). As of the writing of this staff report, 57 people had responded 
and provided input. The majority of responses indicated a positive response to using the funds for 
Economic Development activities such as business assistance and microenterprise assistance (5 or fewer 
employees), followed by Public Service (specifically rental assistance) and finally Public Facility and 
Infrastructure with a COVID nexus. The survey will remain open until February 2, 2021, at 3 pm and staff 
will provide a discussion of those responses.  

City staff has met and discussed the potential of utilizing CDBG-CV monies to provide business assistance 
and to replace the HVAC system at the Silveira Community Center where ongoing COVID testing is 
occurring three days a week under a Memorandum of Understanding with the County of Lake Health and 
Human Services and potentially as a vaccination site for the residents of Lakeport. Staff recently learned 
of a program that the State of California will be implementing to provide rental assistance for up to 12 
months. Therefore, rather than duplicate efforts, staff would recommend residents utilize the state 
program as individuals would not be able to receive CDBG funds and the State funding. 

Staff recommends that $191,394 be allocated towards Economic Development Activities and the 
remaining $50,000 be allocated under Public Facilities and Infrastructure to replace the failing HVAC 
system so that residents may continue to have a local site for COVID testing.  

The California Department of Housing and community Development (HCD), whom oversees the State 
CDBG program, have noted that applications for use of CDBG-CV monies should be expended quickly to 
address COVID-19 related needs. A program to provide business assistance and install the HVAC can be 
achieved quickly and would be made available to various community organizations involved in combating 
the effects of COVID-19 in our local area. 

OPTIONS: 

1. Identify preferred activities and direct staff to proceed with the preparation of the CDBG-CV 
application and necessary resolutions. 

2. Direct staff not to prepare a CDBG-CV 2 and 3 grant application. 
3. Take no action or provide other direction to staff. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

https://forms.gle/EqcbkWWkmShUyCry7


Meeting Date:  02/02/2021 Page 3  Agenda Item #V.A. 
 

 None  $      Budgeted Item?   Yes    No 

Budget Adjustment Needed?   Yes    No   If yes, amount of appropriation increase:  $      

Affected fund(s):  General Fund    Water OM Fund    Sewer OM Fund    Other: Fund  

The City’s grant consultant for CDBG, Adams Ashby Group, will be preparing the application.  The 
application cost is an eligible expenditure under the City’s open contract with general administration 
funds.  It is believed that the grant will have enough funds to cover this cost with no additional funds being 
needed.  If awarded, CDBG funds are a 100% grant with no matching fund requirements.  Up front 
expenditures for preparation of any bids and specifications by the City Engineer or other consultants may 
be required.  If awarded these funds may be eligible for reimbursement (OTC Projects).   

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

Move to approve up to two new funding allocations and direct staff to proceed with the preparation of a 
CDBG-CV 2 and 3 application for the recommended purpose. 

    Attachments: 1.  CDBG CARES NOFA – Rounds 2 and 3 

 



           

      
   

       
   

        
       

  

   

   
   

   
   

   

    
 

   
        

     
  

  
   

    

     
        

  
   

   
 

  
 

 
   

  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA - BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 670 
Sacramento, CA 95833 
(916) 263-2771 
www.hcd.ca.gov 

December 18, 2020 

MEMORANDUM FOR: All Potential Applicants 

FROM: Jennifer Seeger, Deputy Director 
Division of Financial Assistance 

SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Program 
Coronavirus, Aid, Relief, Economic Security (CARES) Act 
2020 Notice of Funding Availability - Rounds 2 and 3 

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (Department) is 
pleased to announce the availability of approximately $77.1 million in funding 
pursuant to the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act signed 
into law March 27, 2020.  This amount includes $5.9 million of unclaimed funds from 
tranche one (CV1), plus $54.4 million of new funds from tranche two (CV2) and 
$16.8 million from tranche three (CV3) of new federal funds for the Community 
Development Block Grant- Coronavirus Relief (CDBG-CV) available for local 
assistance. There is a remainder of approximately $50 million from the second 
tranche (CV2) which will be released under a subsequent NOFA for the purposes of 
Project Roomkey housing relocation activities and in support of Homekey projects. 

To the extent possible, the Department encourages applicants for these rounds of 
CDBG-CV funding to coordinate and collaborate with their local Continuums of Care to 
prioritize the needs of Californians experiencing homelessness or at imminent risk of 
homelessness who need access to housing and, if needed, emergency shelter in order 
to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19. CDBG-CV funds can be used to support 
emergency housing payments for people experiencing homelessness or at risk of 
homelessness, and acquisition of housing or shelter for people experiencing 
homelessness. 

The critical priority for this funding is to ensure all eligible persons receive equitable 
access to services, and are served with dignity, respect and compassion regardless of 
circumstance, ability or identity. This includes marginalized populations, including but 
California Department of Housing and Community Development Page 1 
CDBG-CV2 and 3 NOFA – December 2020 

www.hcd.ca.gov


CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA  
December 18, 2020 
Page 2 

California Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 

not limited to, Black, Native and Indigenous, Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islanders and other 
People of Color, immigrants, people with criminal records, people with disabilities, 
people with mental health and substance use vulnerabilities, people with limited English 
proficiency, people who identify as transgender, people who identify as LGBTQ+, and 
other individuals that may not traditionally access mainstream support. The Department 
expects eligible applicants to plan for how this funding will reduce disparities and 
increase racial equity in their communities. 

The Department is committed to supporting Tribes in addressing housing and 
community development needs related to COVID-19 through set-asides for both 
federally recognized and non-federally recognized Native American Tribes and 
dedicated outreach and technical assistance. California has the largest Native American 
population in the nation. Poverty and inadequate housing conditions disproportionately 
affect tribal populations. The rate of tribal poverty is more than twice that of the rest of 
the California's population, and tribes have been disproportionally impacted by COVID-
19, both by infection rates and hospitalizations. The Department recognizes that while 
Tribes may face many of the same barriers as other under-resourced applicants, the 
unique status of Tribes requires additional, specific considerations in the design and 
implementation of programs and technical assistance. The Department also recognizes 
the legacy of violence, exploitation, dispossession and attempted destruction of Tribes 
and related communities and that this has important ramifications for present-day 
relationships. The Department is committed to learning about, considering, and 
honoring this history when building relationships with Tribes over time through 
respectful and accountable interactions.  

The Department will be accepting applications through the Grants Network portal 
beginning December 28, 2020. Applications and required documentation will be due on a 
rolling deadline, by activity type. Applications are due as follows:  

Public Service Applications will be due no later than Friday, February 12, 2021, 5:00 p.m. 
Pacific Standard Time. 

Public Facilities and Infrastructure Applications will be due no later than Monday, 
February 22, 2021, 5:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time. 

Economic Development Applications will be due no later than Friday, March 5, 2021, 
5:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time. 

Tribal Applications from the federally and non-federally recognized Tribal-set-asides will be 
due no later than Friday, March 12, 2021, 5:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time. 



CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA  
December 18, 2020 
Page 3 

California Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 

Housing Acquisition/Rehabilitation Applications will be due no later than Friday, 
March 12, 2021, 5:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time. 

Applications in support of Homekey projects (CDBG-CV funding for rehabilitation of 
Homekey funded acquisitions) will be due no later than Friday, March 26, 2021, 5:00 p.m. 
Pacific Standard Time. 

Any application received after the respective due dates above will not be accepted.  

Applications will be reviewed and awarded as received. Applicants must submit their 
approved governing body resolution (and supporting organizational documents) prior to 
Department’s execution of a Standard Agreement. The Department will not execute 
agreements without the approved governing body resolution that is acceptable to the 
Department. In the event that the CDBG-CV funds are not fully awarded by the application 
closing date, the Department will either allocate additional funding to active contracts that 
have met performance and timeliness milestones, and/or will roll unawarded funds into 
over-subscribed set-asides as appropriate and available.  

Applicants are encouraged to set-up their profiles in the Grants Network portal located at 
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login as early as possible. Profile set-up instructions can be 
found in the Grants Network portal, external user manual on the CDBG webpage under at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtml. Complete and accurate 
profiles assist in expediting awards and are strongly recommended. Applications must be 
started and submitted under the applying jurisdictions profile. With the exception of the 
tribal set-aside, applications started and/or submitted under a consultant or non-profit 
service provider’s profile will not be accepted. The Department will not be responsible for 
applications submitted under an ineligible profile. 

Applicants are encouraged to begin the application process early to ensure successful 
submission before the application deadline. If you have any trouble logging into the portal 
or have questions on how to complete the online application, please contact the CDBG 
staff at cdbg@hcd.ca.gov and make sure to include CDBG-CV in the subject line of your 
message. 

To receive CDBG-CV NOFA FAQs, notice of NOFA webinars, Office Hours notifications, 
and other program information and updates, please subscribe to the CDBG listserv at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/HCD_SSI/subscribe-form.html. For questions or assistance, 
please email cdbg@hcd.ca.gov. 

Attachment 

https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/docs/HCD_External_User_Manual_12182019.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtml
mailto:cdbgnofa@hcd.ca.gov
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/HCD_SSI/subscribe-form.html
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/HCD_SSI/subscribe-form.html
mailto:cdbg@hcd.ca.gov


Community Development Block Grant Program - 
CARES Act Round 2 and 3 

Notice of Funding Availability 

Gavin Newsom, Governor 
State of California 

Lourdes Castro Ramírez, Secretary 
Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency 

Gustavo Velasquez, Director 
California Department of Housing and Community Development 

Division of Financial Assistance, Federal Programs Branch 
Community Development Block Grant Program 

2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95833 
CDBG Program Email: cdbg@hcd.ca.gov 

December 18, 2020

mailto:cdbg@hcd.ca.gov


Contents 
I. Notice of Funding Availability 1 

A. Tentative program timeline 2 
B. Authorizing Legislation 2 

C. Conditions 3 
D. Applicant responsibility 4 

II. Eligible activities (24 CFR §§ 570.201-203) 4 
A. Community Development 4 

B. Economic Development 5 
III. Duplication of benefits 5 

IV. National Objectives (24 CFR §§ 570.483-484) 6 
A. Low- to Moderate-Income National Objective 6 

B. Urgent Need National Objective 7 
V. Program set-asides 8 

A. The CDBG-CV2 funding will have the following set-asides: 8 
B. The CDBG-CV3 funding will have the following set-asides: 8 

C. Native American Tribes (federally and non-federally recognized tribes) 8 
VI. Eligible applications 9 

A. Eligible jurisdictions 9 
B. Financial Management Compliance (2 CFR Part 200) 10 

A. Good standing 11 
D. Federal debarment 11 

E. Restrictions on multiple activities in the same political districts 12 
F. Racial Equity 12 

VII. Funding limits 13 
A. Applications and Milestones 13 

B. CDBG-CV Unclaimed Funds 16 
VIII. Program administrative costs 17 

IX. Pre-agreement costs 17 
X. Threshold Submittals and Program Requirements 17 

XI. Applications 18 
A. Application Workshops 18 

B. Application submission 19 
C. Disclosure of application 19 

XII. Application review, approval and commitment process 20 
A. Application review 20 

B. Recommendations 20 
C. Standard Agreements 20 

XIII. Awards announcement and grant implementation 20 
XIV. Federal program requirements 21 

A. Cross-cutting requirements 21 
B. Relocation Plan requirement 22 

C. Article XXXIV compliance 22 
G. Procurement 22 

H. Application Certifications and Statement of Assurances 23 



Appendices 

Appendix A CDBG-CV Allocations 
Appendix B Housing Element and 
Appendix C Citizen Participation and Sample Public Notice 
Appendix D Sample Resolution (Revised 4-10-20) 
Appendix E CDBG-CV IDIS Matrix Codes 
Appendix F Income Limits and Area Benefit 
Appendix G Determining Service Area 
Appendix H Economic Development Parameters 
Appendix I Reserved 
Appendix J CDBG-CV Application Certifications Statement of Assurances 
Appendix K Draft Sample Standard Agreement 
Appendix L Reserved 
Appendix M Tribal Set-Aside Resources 
Appendix N Racial Equity Tools and Guidance 
Appendix O Single Audit Exemption List 



2020 CDBG CARES Act Rounds 2 and 3 Notice of Funding Availability 

California Department of Housing and Community Development Page 1 
CDBG-CV2 and 3 NOFA – December 2020 

I. Notice of Funding Availability

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (Department)
receives funding from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program and allocates
funds to CDBG eligible entities. Under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security (CARES) Act, allocations of tranche 2 CDBG-CV funds made to states included
additional flexibility in working with governments and non-profits as eligible entities to
apply for funds. This NOFA includes funding for the non-entitlement jurisdictions in
California, allocated by formula, as well as set-asides for federally recognized tribes,
non-federally recognized tribes, and Colonias. The funds in this NOFA represent
approximately 48 percent of CDBG-CV2 funds made available to the state, and all of the
CDBG-CV3 funds. The remaining CDBG-CV2 funds are being directed to activities
identified in the Second Amendment to the 2019 Annual Action Plan that are available
for both entitlement and non-entitlement jurisdictions. Approximately $5.9 million of
unclaimed funds from tranche 1, and $54.4 million of new funds from tranche two and
$16.8 million from tranche three of new federal funds authorized by the CARES Act, will be
allocated to eligible jurisdictions to perform activities related to COVID-19 as itemized in
Appendix A. The CARES Act provides extra CDBG funds specifically targeted to prevent,
prepare for, and respond to coronavirus.

The CDBG-CV2 and CV3 Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) provides funding ONLY
for the following activities, which are narrowly tailored as described in Section II.A and
Section II.B of this NOFA:

• Assistance to businesses and microenterprises impacted by COVID-19
stay-at-home orders and shut-down

• Public services related to COVID-19 support

• Facility and infrastructure improvements related to COVID-19 impacts

• Acquisition and rehabilitation of real property, including housing, to be used in
response to COVID-19 impacts

CDBG-CV2 and 3 funds included in this NOFA will be distributed through a simplified 
application via the Grants Network portal online grant management system and will be 
available to all CDBG-eligible non-entitlement jurisdictions, Colonias, and Tribes, both 
federally recognized and non-federally recognized tribes as outlined in the Department’s 
second and third 2019 Annual Action Plan Amendments located at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/index.shtml. 

https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/6113/fr-6218-n-01-notice-of-program-rules-waivers-alt-requirements-under-cares-act-cdbg/
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2020/08/20/2020-18242/notice-of-program-rules-waivers-and-alternative-requirements-under-the-cares-act-for-community
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/docs/2019-2020%20annual%20action%20plan%20cares%20act%20substantial%20amendment_cv2.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/index.shtml


Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 2 

This NOFA outlines application requirements, timelines for eligible jurisdictions, and 
provides documentation requirements.  

A. Tentative program timeline

Event Date 
CDBG-CV2 and 3 NOFA and application 
released 

December 18, 2020 

NOFA Workshop (for all applicants) January 7, 2021, 3pm – 5pm PST 
Tribal Workshop (for Tribes and their 
partners) 

January 5, 2021, 10:30am – 
12:30pm PST 

Public Service Application Deadline (non-
Tribal) 

February 12, 2021 5pm PST 

Public Facilities and Infrastructure 
Deadline 

February 22, 2021, 5pm PST 

Economic Development Deadline March 5, 2021, 5pm PST 
Tribal Set-Aside Application Deadline March 12, 2021, 5pm PST 
Housing Acquisition Rehabilitation 
Deadline 

March 12, 2021, 5pm PST 

Homekey Support Applications Deadline March 26, 2021, 5pm PST 
Department announces awards As applications are approved 

* Award timeline is dependent on receipt of HUD’s executed grant agreement for CDBG-CV 2
and 3 funds, and therefore the above dates are approximate and subject to change.

B. Authorizing Legislation

Funding under this NOFA is made available pursuant to the CARES Act (Public Law
No: 116-136) and the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (HCDA) as
amended and codified at Title 42 United States Code (U.S.C.) § 5301, et. seq., and
Subpart 1 of the federal CDBG Regulations, found at Title 24 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) § 570.480 et seq. The requirements of the state CDBG program
are in California Health and Safety Code (HSC) §§ 50825-50834. This NOFA should
be read in conjunction with the following regulations that establish state and federal
CDBG requirements. Relevant legal authority includes, but is not limited to, the
following:

• Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (HCDA) as amended codified
at Title 42 United States Code 5301 et seq., and Subpart 1 of the Federal CDBG
Regulations

• HSC §§ 50825-50834

• CFR, Title 24, Part 570, Subpart I

• 24 CFR Part 58

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/5301
https://codes.findlaw.com/ca/health-and-safety-code/hsc-sect-50825.html
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/24-CFR-Part%20-570-CDBGs.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/24-CFR-Part%20-570-CDBGs.pdf


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 3 
 

 
• 2 CFR Part 200 

 

 as amended 

 as amended  

 

  

 
• CDBG Guidelines (Guidelines)

 
• The State of California 2015-2020 Consolidated Plan

 
• The State of California 2019-2020 Annual Action Plan

 
• California Governor’s Executive Order N-66-20

 
• Federal Register Notice 85 FR 51457

If state or federal statutes or regulations, or other laws, relating to CDBG-CV funds 
are modified by the United States Congress, HUD, the Department, California State 
Legislature, or the Governor, the changes may become effective immediately and 
may be applicable to this NOFA and existing Standard Agreements.  

If there is a conflict between the state and federal regulations, the federal regulations 
shall prevail. In addition, the Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to 
suspend or amend the provisions of this NOFA. If such an action occurs, the 
Department will notify interested parties. Awards made under this NOFA are also 
contingent upon the Department executing a Grant Agreement with HUD for the 
CARES Act funds. 

C. Conditions 

Applicants and Awardees acknowledge that the funding opportunities referenced in 
this NOFA, and all obligations of the Department herein, are expressly subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. The ongoing availability of funds 
 

 
2. The continued authority of the Department to administer the CDBG-CV funds 

3. The execution of the CARES Act funding grant agreement with HUD 

In the event that funds are not available to fund any, or all, activities offered herein, or 
if the Department’s authority to administer the CDBG-CV funds or act under this 
NOFA is eliminated, or in any way restricted, the Department shall have the option, at 
its sole discretion, to amend, rescind, suspend, or terminate this NOFA and any 
associated funding pursuant to the provision set forth immediately above. This NOFA 
is not a commitment of funds to any activity or applicant.  

https://ecfr.io/Title-02/cfr200_main
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/docs/Final-CDBG-Program-Guidelines-2019.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/index.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/index.shtml
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/5.29.20-EO-N-66-20-text.pdf
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2020/08/20/2020-18242/notice-of-program-rules-waivers-and-alternative-requirements-under-the-cares-act-for-community


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 4 
 

D. Applicant responsibility 

It is the Applicant’s responsibility to ensure that the application submitted is clear, 

complete, and accurate. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to ensure that the 

application is submitted under the correct jurisdiction profile, and, with the exception 
of the Tribal set-aside, is not submitted under a consultant, non-profit, or personal 
profile in Grants Network. It is also the Applicant’s responsibility to ensure that 

the governing body resolution submitted is clear, complete, and accurate, and 
follows the provided template with no substantive changes. The Department will 
not execute agreements without a Department approved resolution and supporting 
organizational documents. Resolutions may only be approved by Department legal 
staff. Resolutions that deviate from the provided template, or that are drafted without 
the template will be subject to additional review and may be rejected as insufficient at 
the discretion of Department legal staff. Program staff acceptance of a resolution 
does not guarantee that resolution will meet the Department’s legal standards. 
Use the provided resolution template as found in the program solicitation files. 
DO NOT USE A RESOLUTION TEMPLATE FROM ANOTHER SOLICITATION OR 
PROGRAM APPLICATION. After the application submittal deadline, Department 
staff may request clarifying information to make sure the application is complete and 
accurate and meets federal eligibility requirements. Applications requiring changes 
will be returned to draft status for correction. No Applicant may appeal the 
Department’s evaluation of another Applicant’s application. 

II. Eligible activities (24 CFR §§ 570.201-203) 

Applicants can apply for a total of three (3) activities, including activities submitted under 
a previous CV1 application, with the total request not exceeding the allocation amount in 
Appendix A. If an applicant applied for three (3) total activities under the previous CV1 
NOFA, the Applicant may add one (1) additional activity under the CV2 and 3 
application. Applicants may request to add CV2 and 3 funding to approved CV1 activities 
through a CV1 standard agreement amendment. Activities funded under this NOFA 
will have a 24-month expenditure period. CV1 activities amended to include CV2 and 
3 funding will have the CV2 and 3 performance and expenditure deadlines. See 
Appendix E for a list of eligible HUD Matrix Codes. Applicants must show a relationship 
between the need for services and COVID-19 impacts. 

For the CDBG-CV NOFA, the following activities are permitted: 

A. Community Development 

1. Public Services to respond to COVID-19 impacts, including short-term 
subsistence payments for households at risk of eviction and/or homelessness and 
housing costs for those exiting homelessness, homeless shelter operations, and 
health and education support services  

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.201


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 5 
 

 

 

 

 

2. Public Facility and Infrastructure improvements with a documented COVID-19 
nexus 

3. Public facility acquisition, including healthcare facilities, emergency shelters, and 
housing for persons experiencing homelessness in response to COVID-19 
impacts 

4. Housing Assistance 

a. Acquisition and/or rehabilitation of Low-Mod Income Housing in response to 
COVID-19 impacts on vulnerable populations or individuals including 
households experiencing homelessness 

B. Economic Development  

1. Business assistance to help businesses retain employees, or in the case of 
businesses re-starting after mandated COVID-19 related shut-downs, adding 
employees 
 

2. Microenterprise assistance (including Micro-financial assistance and Technical 
assistance) for businesses impacted by COVID-19 with five or fewer employees, 
including the business owner 

III. Duplication of benefits 

A duplication of benefit (DoB) occurs when a program beneficiary receives assistance 
from multiple sources for a cumulative amount that exceeds the total amount needed for 
assistance. The amount of the duplication is the amount of assistance provided in 
excess of the need. It is the Department’s responsibility to ensure that each CDBG-CV 
activity provides assistance only to the extent that the project’s funding needs have not 

been met by another source. See Stafford Act (42 U.S.C. § 5155; HUD Memorandum 
dated 9 April 2020, subject: ‘CARES Act Flexibilities for CDBG funds used to support 
coronavirus response and plan amendment waiver’) 

Section 312 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act 
(Stafford Act) prohibits federal agencies from providing assistance to any “person, 

business concern, or other entity” for any loss to which the entity has already received 

financial assistance from another source (42 USC § 5155(a)). The Federal Register 
Notice, published November 16, 2011 (Docket No. FR-5582-N), requires adequate 
policies and procedures in place to prevent a duplication of benefit and the recapture of 
funds, if necessary.  

Applicants will be required to submit duplication of benefits policies and 
procedures at application and Awardees will be required to continue to report on 



 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 6 
 

duplication of benefits throughout the expenditure period for the CDBG-CV funds. 
Duplication of benefit must be tracked at both the programmatic level and at the client 
service level. Awardees will be expected to re-capture funds from households that have 
received a duplication of benefit. The Department will be required to recapture funds 
from Awardees with duplicated benefit(s). Recapture requirements and process must 
be included in written duplication of benefit policies and procedures.  

IV. National Objectives (24 CFR §§ 570.483-484) 

A. Low- to Moderate-Income National Objective 

At least 70 percent of the total funds awarded must benefit low- to moderate-
income (LMI) individuals or households. No Activity or portion of a program assisted 
by these funds may exclude from its benefits the lowest-income eligible group.  

Persons, households, and/or neighborhoods benefiting from LMI activities must meet 
HUD’s LMI requirements. Income limits are regularly updated. Applicants will be 
notified via a news blast email and information will be posted on the Department’s 

website if the HUD Adjusted Median Family Income (HAMFI) limits or low- to 
moderate-income areas (LMA) are updated during the application period. 

The LMI National Objective consists of the following categories: 

1. LMI Limited Clientele (LMC), as defined by income limits or presumed benefit.  

LMC refers to persons who earn 80 percent or less of HAMFI for the county of 
residence, as updated annually by HUD. Note that all subsistence payment 
activities are LMC activities and must select LMC as the appropriate National 
Objective. 

Presumed benefit LMC refers to persons who, as a category, are typically low 
income. This includes: 

• Seniors 
 

 

 

 

 

 

• Persons with a disability (must meet the Bureau of the Census’ Current 
Population Report’s definition of “severely disabled”) 

• Homeless persons 

• Abused children and battered spouses 

• Illiterate adults 

• Persons living with acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) 

• Migrant farmworkers 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.483
https://hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/income-limits/state-and-federal-income-limits.shtml
https://www.census.gov/topics/health/disability/about/glossary.html
https://www.census.gov/topics/health/disability/about/glossary.html


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 7 
 

 
2. LMI Area (LMA), as defined by census tracts and block groups.  

• LMA eligibility is based on American Community Survey using Census 
Geographies. 
 

 

 

• At least 51 percent of households in the area must be earning at 80% or below 
HAMFI to meet LMA. 

• Must be contiguous – the area must be a solid area, without certain streets or 
buildings being excluded, and the area should be mapped to show eligibility. If 
a service area is not contiguous it will be determined to be a separate activity 
and will need as separate application.  

• Activity must be a public benefit for the area, for example the construction of a 
facility to be used for testing, diagnosis, or treatment of infectious disease. 
LMA Eligibility should be determined from the Map Application at HUD’s Low- 
and Moderate-Income Summary Data Application page. Instructions for HUD’s 

mapping application can be found at this link: 
https://hud.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ffd0597e8af24
f88b501b7e7f326bedd 

3. LMI Housing (LMH), as defined by household income limits 

• Households earning 80 percent of less of HAMFI. 

4. LMI Job Creation or Retention (LMJ) activities 

• LMJ is based on the number of full-time equivalent jobs created or retained 
 

 

• Must create or retain jobs, and 51 percent of those jobs must be for LMI 
persons 

• To meet the public benefit requirements for LMJ activities, for every $85,000 
spent (including activity delivery), one full-time equivalent job must be created 
or retained 

B. Urgent Need National Objective 

Urgent Need is a national objective that is available for instances where there are 
conditions in a community that must meet all of the following criteria: 

• Pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community 
 

• Are of recent origin or recently became urgent 

https://hud.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ffd0597e8af24f88b501b7e7f326bedd
https://hud.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ffd0597e8af24f88b501b7e7f326bedd
https://hud.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ffd0597e8af24f88b501b7e7f326bedd
https://hud.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ffd0597e8af24f88b501b7e7f326bedd


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 8 
 

 

 
• The applicant is unable to finance the activity 

• Other resources of funding are not available to carry out the activity 

The availability of Urgent Need as a national objective depends on the overall LMI 
performance of the state. The state may only offer Urgent Need in the margin above 
the statutory 70% LMI requirement. As a result, Urgent Need will not be a default 
National Objective and may only be designated on a case-by-case basis. Applicants 
that have no option but to use Urgent Need must contact the Department to 
discuss how to prepare and submit their application. 

V. Program set-asides 

A. The CDBG-CV2 funding will have the following set-asides: 

• Colonias – 5 percent of 48 percent of total CDBG-CV2 funding 
 

 

• Non-federally recognized tribes – 1.25 percent of 48 percent of total CDBG-CV2 
funding 

• Federally recognized tribes – 5 percent of 48 percent of total CDBG-CV2 funding 

B. The CDBG-CV3 funding will have the following set-asides: 

• Colonias – 5 percent of total CDBG-CV3 funding 
 

• Non-federally recognized tribes – 1.25 percent of total CDBG-CV3 funding 

The Department will set up a unique application form in the electronic Grants 
Management System for each set-aside type, and applications for set-aside funds 
may not be submitted under the general CDBG-CV2 and 3 electronic application 
form. The Department will hold a dedicated Tribal Workshop on Tuesday 
January 5, 2021. Registration is open to all eligible CDBG-CV applicants, and both 
non-federally recognized tribes and federally recognized tribes are encouraged to 
attend.  

C. Native American Tribes (federally and non-federally recognized tribes) 

Applicants for the Tribal set aside include federally recognized and non-federally 
recognized tribes), tribally designated housing entities, and subrecipients (e.g. tribal 
affiliated groups or non-profits, tribal consortiums) who apply on behalf of a Tribe. All 
eligible applicants for the Tribal set-aside will be invited to participate in a technical 
assistance consultation with the Department’s staff and HUD Technical Assistance 
Providers prior to the Application due date. See Appendix M for additional information 
and resources. 



 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 9 
 

Tribal applications will adhere to the following schedule based on application type: 

Public services applications for the federally and non-federally recognized Tribal 
Nations set-asides will be due no later than March 12, 2021 at 5pm PST. Applications 
will be reviewed on a rolling basis. Public service applications will be prioritized for 
funding. Applicants are encouraged to prioritize public services, including food 
stabilization, housing assistance, healthcare services, and education support in 
response to the impacts of COVID-19 on native communities. Public service 
applications will be reviewed first, and will be awarded funding based on time of 
receipt of a satisfactory complete, eligible, and accurate application. Eligible, 
complete, and accurate unfunded public service applications will be held for potential 
unclaimed funds, as described in section VII. Funding Limits below.  

Housing, facilities, and infrastructure applications for the federally and non-federally 
recognized Tribal Nations set-asides will be due no later than March 12, 2021 at 5pm 
PST. Applications will be reviewed on a rolling basis after all public services 
applications have been reviewed and either approved or denied funding. Housing, 
facilities, and infrastructure applications will be reviewed after the public services, 
pending ongoing availability of funds, and will be awarded funding based on time of 
receipt of a satisfactory complete, eligible, and accurate application. Eligible, 
complete, and accurate unfunded public service applications will be held for potential 
unclaimed funds, as described in section VII. Funding Limits below, provided that 
unclaimed funds have first been made available to the public service applications 
above. 

VI. Eligible applications 

Applicants must meet the following requirements when the application is submitted to be 
eligible to apply for funding under this NOFA:  

A. Eligible jurisdictions 

Any California city or county except a city or county that participates in the HUD-
administered CDBG Entitlement program either as a direct entitlement, or as part of 
an urban county consortium is eligible to apply for CDBG-CV2 and 3 funding, 
additionally, any federally recognized tribe, tribally designated housing entity, or non-
federally recognized tribe with contracting status is eligible to apply for CDBG-CV2 
set-asides funding for tribes in this NOFA. Incorporated cities located in an urban 
county as defined by 42 U.S.C. 5302(a)(6) must formally elect to be excluded from 
participation in the urban county entitlement status. HUD must be notified that the city 
has elected to be excluded from the urban county participation as per 
24 CFR 570.307(g) for it to be eligible for the state CDBG program, including CDBG-
CV2 and 3 funding in this NOFA. Eligible Applicants may use the following 
approaches. Only eligible activities from eligible Applicants will be reviewed.  



 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 10 
 

1. An eligible Applicant may apply on its own behalf.  
 

 

 

 

2. An eligible Applicant may apply on behalf of one or more other eligible Applicants. 
An application on behalf of one or more other eligible applications will need to 
include a Memorandum of Understanding, or similar formal agreement, fully 
executed by all parties of the application, that clearly identifies the lead Applicant 
and that details the roles, responsibilities, and requirements for each party. The 
agreement must be enforceable and submitted documentation must include 
resolutions from each participating jurisdiction approving the agreement.  

3. Two or more eligible Applicants, which share a program, may submit a joint 
application. A joint application must include a Memorandum of Understanding, 
or similar formal agreement, fully executed by all parties of the application, that 
clearly identifies the lead Applicant and that details the roles, responsibilities, 
and requirements for each party. The agreement must be enforceable. Only one 
Applicant in a joint application may be designated as the lead agency and will 
have the lead responsibility for administering the Standard Agreement, financial 
management, and activity reporting. 

4. An eligible Applicant may apply on behalf of an applicant that has been 
determined to be ineligible due to programmatic findings, outstanding litigation, or 
statutory non-compliance, provided the findings, litigation, and/or noncompliance 
has been resolved, or is actively in progress of resolution and will be resolved 
during the expenditure period of the CDBG-CV2 and 3 funding. Applicants that 
have been debarred are not eligible for funding, and no other applicant may apply 
on their behalf.  

5. An eligible Applicant may partner with a non-federally recognized tribe, with tribal 
consent, to apply and administer funds on its behalf.  

Applicants that have not applied to the CDBG program in the last 5 years, or who are 
first time applicants to the state administered CDBG program are strongly 
encouraged to schedule pre-application technical assistance meetings with the 
Department’s staff. These meetings are intended to help Applicants submit eligible 
applications that align with Applicant capacity and that are targeted to community 
needs and priorities. Ongoing technical assistance will be available to any entity that 
requests support in administering funds throughout the duration of the CDBG-CV 
funding. 

B. Financial Management Compliance (2 CFR Part 200) 

The Applicant must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Department that it is in 
compliance with the financial management requirements at 2 CFR §200, et seq., 
including the single audit requirements of 2 CFR §200.501.  



 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 11 
 

C. Good standing 

The Applicant, and any co-Applicant, together with the respective affiliates, must be 
in good standing with the Department (i.e., are current on all loan and/or grant 
obligations, have a satisfactory past performance history in all of their prior dealings 
with the Department, and are in full compliance with all Department contracts and 
reporting requirements.) Applicants not meeting the foregoing requirements shall 
include with their application evidence that they are actively working with the 
Department to resolve any issue. 

D. Federal debarment 

Pursuant to 24 CFR Part 5, all CDBG-CV Applicants are required to verify they 
and their, contractors, consultants, businesses, sub-recipients, etc., that will be 
conducting business with the Applicant as part of the activity are not presently 
debarred, proposed for debarment, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in the covered transaction or in any proposal submitted in 
connection with the covered transaction. All Applicants, contractors, consultants, 
businesses, sub-recipients, or any other organization proposing to operate with 
support from CDBG-CV funds must be registered with the federal System for Award 
Management (SAM). Entities that do not show results for a SAM search must 
register with SAM to be eligible for CDBG-CV funding. Applicants and Applicant 
partners are responsible for managing SAM registration and ensuring registrations 
are current and active. Individuals under the employment of the Applicant or 
Applicant partners do not need to be individually evaluated for debarment unless that 
individual is operating as an independent contractor instead of an employee.  

The Department will not award any CDBG-CV program funds to Applicants that are 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from participation from federally assisted programs, or that are proposing to 
partner, contract, or otherwise fund activities through an organization that is 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or otherwise ineligible from 
participation in federally assisted programs. Applicants are responsible for providing 
proof that all program partners, subrecipients, contractors, and any other program 
participants, current or future, are not debarred. Applicants must provide proof from 
the federal SAM that the Applicant, all application partners, and any subrecipients, 
developers, consultants, and contractors participating in the application, the potential 
administration of the award, or the potential implementation of the Activity are not 
debarred. Applicants are not required to run debarment checks against 
individual employees. If Applicant has not yet procured the contractor or identified a 
subrecipient for a specific activity, the Applicant will be required to check for 
debarment prior to executing a contract or agreement for that activity and include 
proof of debarment evaluation in the activity file.  

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-5
https://www.sam.gov/SAM/


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 12 
 

If an Applicant is proposing an Economic Development activity that will provide funds, 
either through a loan or a grant, to for-profit businesses, those businesses must also 
be registered in SAM, and the Applicant must run a debarment check on each 
business. Businesses that are debarred will not be eligible for program funds. 
Businesses that do not show results are not registered and must be registered 
to be eligible for funding. 

E. Restrictions on multiple activities in the same political districts 

Applications for eligible activities outside the Applicant's jurisdiction must include 
a legally binding agreement, acceptable to the Department, with the city or county 
in which the eligible Activity is located. Applicants may not apply to both the state 
CDBG program (including CDBG-CV) and to a CDBG program administered by an 
Urban County or other entitlement entity during the same program year. 

F. Racial Equity 

Applicants should prioritize the advancement of racial equity in all CDBG-CV 
programs and across systems and units of government in their jurisdiction. The 
Department asks applicants to be leaders in their communities facilitating 
partnerships among service organizations, housing providers, units of government, 
businesses, the homelessness response system and other partners to promote racial 
equity practices. All Applicants must identify how they are working to ensure racial 
equity in access to programs, projects, and activities funded with CDBG-CV 
resources. Applicants must commit to analyzing disproportionality in access to 
housing, access to services, quality of service provision and desired outcomes in 
programs and projects and affirmatively further equitable access, quality of service 
provision and outcomes for protected classes, including but not limited to Black, 
Native and Indigenous, Latino/Latina/Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islanders and other people 
of color who have been historically marginalized and are disproportionately impacted 
by housing segregation, poverty, homelessness, and COVID-19. 

Applicants cannot simply rely on delivering a standardization of services to address 
equity. Applicants must commit to reviewing their current policies and procedures and 
examining available data to ensure all eligible persons receive equitable services, 
support, and are served with dignity, respect and compassion regardless of 
circumstances, ability, or identity. See Appendix N for Racial Equity Resources and 
Tools. 

When applying for CDBG-CV (Round 2 & 3) funds, applicants should consider:  

• What are your community’s racial demographics and the demographics of those 

experiencing homelessness, housing and economic insecurity?  
 



 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 13 
 

• What are the outcomes of your CDBG programs based on race? What are your 
requirements for all sub-grantees to look at data to determine racial disparities 
and then put a plan in place to address them? 
 

 

 

 

 

• How do underserved and marginalized communities learn about and enter CDBG-
CV programming? What marketing and communication strategies are used to 
increase equitable access to CDBG-CV programming? 

• How does your grant making process include prioritization for programs that are 
addressing the disproportionate impacts that housing insecurity, homelessness, 
economic insecurity, lack of access to equitable health care and COVID-19 has 
on communities of color, particularly Black, Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islander, and 
Native and Indigenous communities? 

• How are the voices of Black, Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islander, Native and 
Indigenous communities and those with lived experience of housing insecurity, 
homelessness and economic insecurity being centered in a meaningful, sustained 
way in creating effective approaches to addressing these challenges? How are 
they involved in the funding decision-making process? 

• How are these funds accessible to smaller and non-traditional organizations that 
have historically been serving communities of color but may not have previously 
participated formally in government grant programs, and how would these funds 
address the organization capacity of organizations that are led by Black, Latinx, 
Asian, Pacific Islander, and Native and Indigenous people? 

• List your partner organizations that are addressing racial equity in the housing and 
homeless response system, the economic development sector and the health 
care sector and how do you partner with them. 
The Department will require applicants to submit related racial and ethnic data 
metrics of their CDBG-CV programming on a quarterly reporting basis. 

VII. Funding limits 

A. Applications and Milestones 

All applications must be submitted through the Department’s online Grants Network 
portal via https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login; no hard copies will be accepted. 
Jurisdictions will submit one application per Activity. Each Activity must have a 
unique application with a complete budget, National Objective, scope of work, and 
milestone timeline. There will be no “combo” activities or applications accepted in this 

NOFA cycle. Each Activity, both projects and programs, is stand-alone with a 
separate budget and scope of work. General Administration should be budgeted for 

https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 14 
 

each Activity up to 13 percent of the total activity budget. HUD allows a total of 20 
percent of funding to be used for planning and administration. The Federal Register 
Notice for CDBG-CV administration limits the state to 7 percent which allows up to 13 
percent for local jurisdictions. The Department is not proposing to allocate any 
funding for planning only activities, which will allow local jurisdictions to access the 
full administration balance. Each Activity will have a stand-alone Standard Agreement 
for that Activity. Applicants are encouraged to review the attached draft Standard 
Agreement as a sample of the applicable terms and conditions. Applicants may elect 
to take less than the 13 percent allowed for administration and use administration 
funds to increase funding for Activities.  

• Funds from this NOFA cycle will be available to eligible Applicants via allocation 
through a simplified application (See Appendix A for final jurisdiction allocations). 
 

• Activities submitted under the tribal set-asides will be limited according to the 
following schedule: 
 
o Public service activities will be limited to $200,000 per activity application 

(activity type). Applicants are encouraged to evaluate need and capacity and 
ask for sufficient funding to successfully complete the activity. Applications 
asking for less than $50,000 will be subject to additional review for feasibility 
and may require additional feasibility documentation. Feasibility review is an 
opportunity for the Department to discuss the activity with the applicant and 
ensure the level of funding is right-sized to activity scope to promote 
successful completion of the activity.  
 

o Housing and infrastructure activities (with the exception of housing and 
infrastructure assistance provided as part of a public service as identified 
above) will be limited to $500,000 per activity application (activity type). 
 

o Tribes are limited to $500,000 maximum award per tribe.  
 

o Applications submitted in partnership with three or more partners may apply 
for up to $1.5 million. 
 

o Applicants are strongly encouraged to align funding asks with organizational 
capacity to deliver services and complete federal reporting requirements. 
 

o Applications will be reviewed on a rolling basis, as funding is available until 
either all applications submitted during the applicable application period have 
been funded, or all funds have been committed, whichever happens first, as 
per the funding re-allocation process below. See the Tribal Set-Asides section 
for the application schedule.  



 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 15 
 

• Applicants who did not apply for their CDBG-CV1 allocation will receive a reduced 
CV1 allocation in addition to their CV2 and 3 allocations as detailed below in 
Section B.  
 

• Maximum total grant amount limits are the allocation for your jurisdiction.  
o Program income is not included in the allocation amounts. Total activity 

budgets may exceed the award limits if program income is included in the 
activity application.  
 

o Program income included in a CDBG-CV application will be required to meet 
the same performance terms, duplication of benefits, and expenditure period 
for the CDBG-CV funds.  
 

o DO NOT SUBMIT PROGRAM INCOME ONLY APPLICATIONS IN THE 
CDBG-CV APPLICATION. PROGRAM INCOME ONLY APPLICATIONS 
SUBMITTED WITH THE CDBG-CV APPLICATION DURING THE CDBG-
CV2 AND 3 NOFA CYCLE WILL BE DENIED WITHOUT OPTION FOR 
REVISION OR REINSTATEMENT. Please see the annual CDBG application 
process for program income only application instructions.  
 

o Applications asking for less than $50,000 will be subject to additional review 
for feasibility and may require additional feasibility documentation. Feasibility 
review is an opportunity for the Department to discuss the activity with the 
applicant and ensure the level of funding is right-sized to activity scope to 
promote successful completion of the activity. 
 

• Milestones: All CDBG-CV funded activities must be implemented according to the 
milestones defined in the Standard Agreement. Applicants must include, at the 
minimum, the following milestones for each Activity application: 

o Milestone 1 – Activity startup 
 

o Milestone 2 – Projected 20 percent expenditure 
 

o Milestone 3 – Projected 50 percent expenditure 
 

o Milestone 4 – Projected 80 percent expenditure 
 

o Milestone 5 – Activity completion and 100 percent expenditure 

Additional milestones are optional, though encouraged for best practice Activity 
implementation. If milestones are not included in the application the Department 
will set default milestones for the Applicant, and the Applicant’s funding will be 
subject to recapture for any missed milestones. Default milestones are as follows: 



 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 16 
 

o Milestone 1 – Standard Agreement Execution 
 

o Milestone 2 – June 1, 2021 
 

o Milestone 3 – December 1, 2021 
 

o Milestone 4 – May 1, 2022 
 

o Milestone 5 – August 1, 2022 

Applicants that fail to meet two or more consecutive milestones may be subject to 
funding re-capture, at the Department’s discretion. Recaptured funds will be 

treated as unclaimed funds, as discussed below.  

B. CDBG-CV Unclaimed Funds 

The CDBG-CV1 NOFA included allocations to all non-entitlement jurisdictions in the 
State of California. Allocations were made prior to the release of the Federal Register 
Notice 85 FR 51457 and did not include updated allowances for state administration. 
The CDBG-CV1 NOFA identified multiple options for re-allocating funds that were not 
requested in the initial CDBG-CV1 NOFA process. These options included re-
allocating funds as part of a future CV NOFA. The Department has determined that 
based on the timeline for committing CDBG-CV1 funding, along with a prolonged 
wild-fire season, and overall reduced capacity at both the Department and among 
Applicants in the ability to apply for and commit funds, that the Department would 
make the necessary adjustments to the unclaimed CDBG-CV1 allocations to 
calculate and set-aside the Department’s allowed administration costs and include 
the remaining allocations with the CDBG-CV2 and 3 allocations to be available to the 
communities originally identified in the CDBG-CV1 NOFA. Please see Appendix A for 
revised awards in unclaimed CDBG-CV1 funds. Applicants that elect to access their 
unclaimed CDBG-CV1 funds along with their CV2 and 3 allocations will use the same 
CDBG-CV2 application templates for all activities, and will be limited to no more than 
3 (three) total activities. In the event that CDBG-CV allocations (including CDBG-
CV1, 2, and 3) are left unclaimed at the end of the CDBG-CV2 and 3 NOFA period, 
funds will be re-allocated in the following priority: 

a. In the event that CDBG-CV1 and 3 funds are left unclaimed at the close of the 
NOFA period, funds will be offered to jurisdictions that are meeting all of their 
performance goals on schedule and that have clearly indicated in their quarterly 
reporting that they have the need and capacity to utilize additional funding in a 
timely manner. 
 

b. In the event that CDBG-CV2 funds are left unclaimed, funds will be redirected to 
applications submitted through the Tribal Set-aside. If applications for the Tribal 

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2020/08/20/2020-18242/notice-of-program-rules-waivers-and-alternative-requirements-under-the-cares-act-for-community


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 17 
 

Set-asides exceeds funding, unclaimed CDBG-CV2 allocations will first be 
awarded to any unfunded Tribal Set-Aside projects to the extent that either all 
projects are funded or all funds are committed, whichever happens first. 
 

c. In the event that there are insufficient unfunded Tribal Set-aside projects to 
commit all unclaimed CDBG-CV2 allocations, unclaimed funds will be offered to 
jurisdictions that are meeting all of their performance goals on schedule and that 
have clearly indicated in their quarterly reporting that they have the need and 
capacity to utilize additional funding in a timely manner.  

VIII. Program administrative costs 

Awardees will be allowed to use a total of up to 13 percent of their allocation for program 
administration costs. Costs incurred in COVID-19 response prior to the allocation may be 
eligible for reimbursement as per the CARES Act. Applicants will be asked to identify 
pre-agreement costs as part of the application budget.  

IX. Pre-agreement costs 

Costs incurred in COVID-19 response prior to allocation may be eligible for 
reimbursement as per the CARES Act so long as the Applicant has not already been 
reimbursed for such costs in connection with a prior CV1 award. Applicants will be 
required to identify pre-agreement costs. Pre-agreement costs not identified as part of 
the application budget will not be eligible for reimbursement. See the attached sample 
Standard Agreement for pre-agreement cost reimbursement terms. 

X. Threshold Submittals and Program Requirements 

• A city or county must be a non-entitlement jurisdiction and must not currently be party 
to an Urban County Agreement or participate in, or be eligible to participate in, the 
HUD-administered CDBG Entitlement program.  
 

• The Activity applied for must be an eligible Activity as defined by 24 CFR §§ 570.201-
203 and the CARES Act. 
 

• The Activity must meet a CDBG national objective as defined by 24 CFR §570.483.  
 

• The Applicant must provide the Department with its most recent single audit, if 
applicable. If the Applicant has open single audit findings (any findings, not just the 
Department, or federal program findings) and does not have a plan or agreement to 
remediate those findings, the Applicant will be deemed ineligible for funding through 
the state CDBG program until the findings are resolved or a remediation plan or 
agreement is established. Applicants exempt from single audit requirements must be 
on the official State Controller’s Office Single Audit Status List in Appendix O. 



 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 18 
 

 
• Pursuant to 24 CFR § 570.486, applications must follow CDBG Public Participation 

regulations as identified in the state’s updated Citizen Participation Requirements for 
Federal Programs, Plans, and Reports. Applicants will be expected to provide 
opportunities for virtual meetings that include opportunities for the public to pose 
questions about the program and receive answers. Applicants will also be expected 
to meet, noticing and public information requirements for the program as per federal 
regulations and the Citizen Participation Requirements.  
As per HSC § 50829, the Applicant must submit a draft adopted Housing Element to 
the Department in accordance with the requirements listed in Government Code (GC) 
§ 65580 et seq., most specifically GC § 65585. Failure to comply with the procedural 
requirements (i.e., GC § 65585) Housing Element law will invalidate the application 
for this NOFA and the Applicant will be deemed ineligible for funding through the 
state CDBG program, including CDBG-CV funding, until the Applicant has met 
procedural requirements. Applicants triggering the provision of HSC § 50830, must 
meet and document all pertinent requirements. See Appendix B for information on 
Housing Element status. 
 

• The Applicant must certify that they have not enacted any growth controls that would 
render them ineligible for CDBG funding, as per certification in Appendix J Application 
Certifications.  
 

• The Applicant must be in good standing with the Department as defined in Section VI 
of this NOFA.  
 

• The Applicant must demonstrate compliance with Uniform Relocation Assistance and 
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 relocation requirements, as applicable.  
 

• The Applicant must demonstrate compliance with Article XXXIV, as applicable.  
 

• To reduce delays in the application review, award, and contracting processes, 
Applicants are required to use the Department’s Sample Resolution of the 

Governing Body. For reference, please see Appendix D. 

XI. Applications 

A. Application Workshops 

The Department will hold a general NOFA Workshop via webinar on January 7, 2021 
and a Tribal Workshop for both non-federally and federally recognized tribes and their 
partners, via webinar on January 5, 2021. Please visit the Department’s website at 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtml to register. 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtml


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 19 
 

Applicants are also strongly encouraged to review available webinars and training 
materials on the CDBG program in general, the CDBG Redesign, using the Grants 
Network portal, and preparing a CDBG program application in the Grants Network 
portal.  

B. Application submission 

Applicants must follow instructions in both this NOFA and the online 
application, including naming convention requirements. Failure to follow 
instructions will result in disqualification. If an instruction is unclear or if an Applicant 
has viewed available training and is still unsure how to proceed, please attend an 
“HCD CDBG/ESG Office Hour” to ask your question, or email the question to 
Department staff at CDBG@hcd.ca.gov. Applications disqualified due to failure to 
follow instructions will not be available for correction, and funding allocations will be 
re-allocated as per this NOFA.  

The CDBG-CV application and all required attachments must be submitted to the 
Department through the Grants Network Portal located at 
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login. Applications must include all required information to 
be submitted. Applicants must certify that all information is true and complete to the 
best of their knowledge, under penalty of perjury.  

Applicants that do not have an account with Grants Network portal should log into the 
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login. Use the “Create an account” option to initiate a 

profile.  

Applications must meet all threshold and eligibility requirements upon submission. It 
is the Applicant’s responsibility to ensure that the submitted application is clear, 

complete, and accurate. Department staff may request clarifying information and may 
request that applications be revised and resubmitted to help address eligibility and 
threshold issues prior to approving applications and issuing awards.  

C. Disclosure of application 

Information provided in the application will become public record available for review 
by the public pursuant to the California Public Records Act (“PRA”) (GC § 6250 et 
seq.). As such, the Department may disclose any materials provided by the Applicant 
to any person making a request under the PRA. The Department cautions Applicants 
to use discretion in providing information not specifically requested, including, but not 
limited to, bank account numbers, personal phone numbers, home addresses, or 
other personally identify information. By providing this information to the Department, 
the Applicant is waiving any claims of confidentiality, and consents to the 
Department’s disclosure of the Applicant’s material upon receipt of a PRA request. 

mailto:CDBG@hcd.ca.gov
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login
https://portal.ecivis.com/#/login


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 20 
 

XII. Application review, approval and commitment process 

A. Application review 

All applications are required to pass threshold requirements. Applications that do not 
meet threshold will not be further reviewed and will be returned to a draft status for 
Applicant revisions. All applications will be reviewed for Activity eligibility. Activities 
that do not meet program eligibility will be returned to a draft status for Applicant 
revisions. Applicants will be given a timeframe to revise and re-submit the application. 
Timeframes will be based on the extent of necessary changes. Applicants that do not 
make requested changes in the given timeframe will have their allocation identified as 
unclaimed, and funding will be re-allocated as per Section VII. Funding Limits. 

B. Recommendations 

The Department will review applications and make award recommendations 
according to the above threshold criteria and the completeness of the application, 
including a clear COVID-19 nexus. Applicants that are recommended for awards will 
be contacted and provided with an opportunity to update project schedules or other 
date-dependent data that may have aged during the application review period. 
Applicants will officially be notified of awards through the Grants Network portal. 
Applicants should ensure that the appropriate contact information is included in 
applicant profiles to facilitate notifications of awards and requests for changes. The 
award notification will include instructions for accepting or declining the award, as 
well as an executable Standard Agreement. Applicants that are not recommended for 
awards will be notified through the Grants Network portal that their application has 
been returned to draft status for Applicant revision, as applicable. 

C. Standard Agreements 

Successful Applicants (Awardees) will enter into a Standard Agreement with the 
Department, a draft sample is included as Appendix K of this NOFA. The Standard 
Agreement contains all the relevant state and federal requirements, activity 
performance and management requirements, and disbursement requirements. A 
condition of award will be that a Standard Agreement must be executed by the 
Awardee within 30 days (contracting period) of the Awardee’s receipt of the Standard 

Agreement(s). Failure to execute and return the Standard Agreement(s) to the 
Department within the contracting period will result in award cancellation. Award 
cancellations are final. 

XIII. Awards announcement and grant implementation 

The Department anticipates awards will be announced as applications are approved for 
funding.  



 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 21 
 

XIV. Federal program requirements 

A. Cross-cutting requirements 

The CDBG-CV funding is administered under the general rules and regulations 
promulgated primarily in 24 CFR § 570.600, et seq. These primary regulations are 
known as the federal cross-cutting requirements and form the basis of the 
programmatic requirements. The Department incorporates all federal cross-cutting 
requirements into the state administered CDBG program, and the regulations in 
Part 570 are translated into required actions on the part of all Awardees of the state 
administered CDBG program, including CDBG-CV funds. 

This following is a summary of the federal cross-cutting requirements: 

1. Environmental Standards (based on National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 
[NEPA])  
 

2. Labor Standards (Davis-Bacon and related laws)  
 

3. Achieving a HUD National Objective  
 

4. Public participation requirements  
 

5. Fair Housing and Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing  
 

6. Equal Opportunity and Non-Discrimination in federal Grant Programs  
 

7. Federal Procurement Guidelines  
 

8. National Flood Insurance Program compliance 
 

9. Relocation and displacement requirements  
 

10. Employment and Contracting Opportunities Section 3 compliance  
 

11. Lead-based paint requirements  
 

12. No use of debarred, ineligible, or suspended contractors or sub-recipients  
 

13. Uniform Administrative Requirements and Cost Principles  
 

14. Conflict of interest prohibitions  
 
 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.600


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 22 
 

15. Compliance with the Architectural Barriers Act and the Americans with Disabilities 
Act  
 

16. Compliance with Eligibility Restrictions for certain resident aliens  
 

17. Federal reporting requirements  
 

18. Grant and subrecipient monitoring requirements  

B. Relocation Plan requirement 

Awardees engaging in project-specific activities that may or will cause the temporary 
or permanent relocation and displacement of persons, property, or businesses must 
provide a project-specific relocation plan as part of the application. The plan must 
meet the standards established in the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real 
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA). Awardees must successfully 
demonstrate that they have met URA requirements prior to the start of the project or 
displacement Activity. Applicants should include relocation costs in project budgets.  

Awardees must provide General Information Notices to persons who may be 
displaced if the Activity in the grant application is funded. This plan must outline how 
the Awardee will enforce and manage the project’s temporary relocation and 

displacement activities and estimate what relocation benefits will be required so those 
costs can be included in the project’s development budget. 

C. Article XXXIV compliance 

Awardees engaging in low-income housing project activities that are subject to Article 
XXXIV of the California Constitution must show that the project approval process 
complies with Article XXXIV requirements as defined in the California Constitution, 
California state statutes, and applicable case law. The state statutes implementing 
Article XXXIV can be found at HSC § 37000, et seq.  

D. Procurement 

Pursuant to 24 CFR §570.489(g), all Awardees must comply with federal 
procurement requirements. The Department will review the Awardee’s procurement 
documents for services (i.e., administrative sub-contractor, Davis-Bacon Act 
consultant, etc.) at time of monitoring. 

Requirements for federal procurement can be found at 2 CFR §200.317-326. 
Awardees are responsible for meeting all federal procurement standards for goods 
and services funded through federal programs. Failure to meet procurement 
requirements may result in disqualification, recapture of federal funds, and 
debarment.  

https://codes.findlaw.com/ca/health-and-safety-code/hsc-sect-37000.html
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.489
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/200.317


 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
CDBG-CV2 and CV3 NOFA – December 2020 Page 23 
 

E. Application Certifications and Statement of Assurances 

Applicants must sign and submit the Certifications and Statement of Assurances 
(Appendix J) with their application to meet threshold. Please review the Statement 
and confirm compliance with each requirement. Failure to comply with the 
certifications and assurances may result in disqualification, recapture of federal 
funds, and debarment.  


	5A.0  2021-02-02 CDBG CV 2 3 staff report.pdf
	5A.1  CDBG CV 2 3 NOFA.pdf
	Contents
	Community Development Block Grant Program - CARES Act Round 2 and 3 Notice of Funding Availability 
	Contents 
	I.Notice of Funding Availability
	A.Tentative program timeline
	B.Authorizing Legislation
	C. Conditions 
	D. Applicant responsibility 
	II. Eligible activities (
	A. Community Development 
	B. Economic Development  
	III. Duplication of benefits 
	IV. National Objectives (
	A. Low- to Moderate-Income National Objective 
	1. LMI Limited Clientele (LMC), as defined by income limits or presumed benefit.  
	2. LMI Area (LMA), as defined by census tracts and block groups.  
	3. LMI Housing (LMH), as defined by household income limits 
	4. LMI Job Creation or Retention (LMJ) activities 
	B. Urgent Need National Objective 
	V. Program set-asides 
	A. The CDBG-CV2 funding will have the following set-asides: 
	B. The CDBG-CV3 funding will have the following set-asides: 
	C. Native American Tribes (federally and non-federally recognized tribes) 
	VI. Eligible applications 
	A. Eligible jurisdictions 
	B. Financial Management Compliance (2 CFR Part 200) 
	C. Good standing 
	D. Federal debarment 
	E. Restrictions on multiple activities in the same political districts 
	F. Racial Equity 
	VII. Funding limits 
	A. Applications and Milestones 
	B. CDBG-CV Unclaimed Funds 
	VIII. Program administrative costs 
	IX. Pre-agreement costs 
	X. Threshold Submittals and Program Requirements 
	XI. Applications 
	A. Application Workshops 
	B. Application submission 
	C. Disclosure of application 
	XII. Application review, approval and commitment process 
	A. Application review 
	B. Recommendations 
	C. Standard Agreements 
	XIII. Awards announcement and grant implementation 
	XIV. Federal program requirements 
	A. Cross-cutting requirements 
	B. Relocation Plan requirement 
	C. Article XXXIV compliance 
	D. Procurement 
	E. Application Certifications and Statement of Assurances 






